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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's reports of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purpose of both a trustees’
report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The academy trust operates 5 secondary and 13 primary schools across the midlands. It has a pupil capacity of
9,829 and a roll of 8,339 in the school census of October 2020.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The academy trust is @ company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The trustees of Community Academies Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The charitable company is known as Community Academies Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be

a member.
Trustees’ iIndemnities

The trust makes use of the Government's Risk Protection Arrangement for academies and the indemnities
therein.

Method 6f Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The members appoint up to 6 trustees in accordance with the provisions in the Articles of Association. Further
trustees are appointed by the existing trustees following an interview with a sub-committee of the trustees and
their recommendation. Trustees are appointed after taking into account the skills and knowledge they can bring
to the trust. The trust has successfully used "Academy Ambassadors” to recruit trustees in previous years.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Training and induction is provided for new trustees and depends on their existing experience. All trustees are
provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, budgets, risk register, plans and other documents that they
will need to undertake their role. As there are normally only one or iwo new trustees a year, induction tends to
be done informally and Is tailored specificaliy to the individual.

Organisational Structure

Community Academies Trust's board of trustees govern the work of the academies across the trust. They govern
the full range of activity required by the trust. These include specialists in human resources, financial
management and estates.

Most of our academies have a School Standards Committee (SSC) comprising up to 9 governors for a primary
school and up to 13 governors for a secondary school. Where a school is in challenging circumstances, it is
governed by an Education Advisory Board (EAB) consisting of main trust board representatives, local
stakeholders and school improvement experts who drive through rapid change to turn around provision. This
EAB is disbanded once the school is settled and a SSC instated.

Each school has a Headteacher with a Strategic Leadership Team (SLT). This SLT and other leaders ensure
strong and clear lines of accountability and the easy flow of information about the quality of provision. They are
responsible for the delivery of the improvement plans and contribute to their formulation and implementation.

Further information on this work is described later in this report under Objectives, Strategies and Activities.
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

A remuneration committee of the trustees is responsible for setting the pay of the executive leaders of the trust. it
does this by benchmarking against advertised rates and bearing in mind the skillsets of staff and regional
marketplace. Also considered is the requirement to maintain differentials in internal structures and the weight of
responsibility attached to the role. it has agreed an Executive Leaders Pay Policy.

Headteachers have their pay determined under the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions document and related
to the Individual Salary Range (ISR) attached to the school, personal performance and the requirements of TUPE.

Trade Union Facility Time

Under the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 the trust is required to
publish the following information relating to trade union officials and facility time.

Table 1
What was the total number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant
period?
Number of employees who were relevant union FTE trade union representatives
officials during the relevant period
12 11.2
Table 2
How many CAT employees, who were relevant Trade Union officials, during 01/04/19-31/03/20, spent
a) 0% b) 1-50% c) 51-99% d) 100% of their time on facility time?
Perceritage of time Number of employees
0% 11
1-50% 1
51 -99% 0
100% 0

Table 3

Provide the figures to determine the percentage of the CAT total pay bill spent on paying employees
who were Trade Union officials, during 01/04/20-31/03/21

The total cost of facility time £522

The total pay bill £36,270,695

The % of th_e total pay bill spent on facility time 0.001%
Table 4

As a percentage of total paid facilities time hours, how many were spent by employees who were
Trade Union officials, during 01/04/20 -31/03/21 on paid trade union activities?
20%
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Community Academies Trust.
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The trust has a Trade Union Recognition Agreement (TURA) with all the unions who represent our employees.
This consultative body has met on 2 occasions in the year.

The CEO visited every schoo! of the trust over the year to describe the strategic direction of the trust and to invite
questions from employees on matters of concern to them. The CEO has also written to every employee personally
to thank them for their contribution in continuing to provide education over the period of the covid-19 pandemic.
The CEO has also led a trust wide virtual governor conference and provided virtual professional development
sessions for all subject leaders on curriculum design and assessment.

Trustees decided that, during the period of the covid-19 lockdown, no employee would be furloughed.

All employees have been consulted with in respect of risk assessments for the safest possible further opening of
schools in line with government guidance.

As the trust employs over 250 persons, it is required to have a policy in respect of applications for employment
for disabled persons, the treatment of employees who become disabled and the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons. This policy can be accessed on the trust website,

www.communityacademiestrust.org .

The mechanism for the trust to consult with employees on matters affecting them is the Hub governance system.
During the year a number of policies have been adopted following consuitation.

Engagement with suppllers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The trust has regard to the need to foster a business relationship with suppliers and others, including Local
Authorities in the area in which the trust operates.

Over the last year the trust has met its obligations in paying suppliers within 31 days, as evidenced by the
submitted Payment Practices Reports and despite difficulties caused by the finance team working remotely, due
to the covid-19 pandemic.

The trust also considered its responsibllities to suppliers under Procurement Practices Note 02/20 and 04/20 -
supplier rellef due to covid-19. Payments were again made to support suppliers during the period of iockdown,
notably to secure the viability of catering and cleaning services.

The trust has a good relationship with the Local Authorities in the area in which it operates and works with them
across a range of initiatives, particularly to do with school improvement and finance.




Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Objectives and Activities

The academy trust's objectives are specifically restricted to the advancing for the public benefit education in the
UK, In particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools offering a broad and balanced curriculum and to promote for the benefit of the
inhabitants of the United Kingdom the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of
individuals who have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial
hardship or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interest of social welfare and with
the object of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants.

Objectives and Alms

In accordance with the articles of assaciation, the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Governance"
approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The Scheme of Governance specifies, amongst other things,
the basis for admitting students to the Academies, the catchment area from which the students are drawn, and
that the curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum.

Everything we do is orientated around ensuring excellent community education for children and young adults
aged 3to 18.

Our approach is based on a fundamental betlief that all young people have talent and the potential to achieve
more than they ever thought possible.

Achievement is in three main areas:

+  Academic: Excellent standards and outstanding progress are a prerequisite for success in life equipping
young people with the skills and knowledge they will need to be successful, happy and productive citizens.

+  Social: Excellent relationships for learning are a prerequisite for all other achievements. Relationships that
engender mutual respect between young people, and all other members of our academies’ communities will
ensure learning can be fun in a disciplined and caring environment where the highest expectations are the
norm.

+  Personal: All young people achieve things they can be proud of every day in addition to academic success
and outside our school’s planned curriculum. We have a vital role in ensuring individuals develop their own
talents and interests and have a responsibility to instill in them a sense of pride in who they are and what
they achieve.
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Our Community

We serve a diverse range of communities in Warwickshire including Polesworth, Warwick, Leamington Spa,
Stratford upon Avon and nearby Warwickshire villages. We also serve communities in Telford, Tamworth and
Lichfield. Our Academies in the year under review, in order of size by pupil numbers:

The Polesworth School (11-18), The Telford Langley School (11-16), The Telford Priory School (11-16), The
Wilnecote School (11-16), The Telford Park School (11-18), Birchwood Primary School (4-11), Grange Park
Primary School (3-11), Woodloes Primary Schoo! (3-11), Windmill Primary School (3-11), Heathcote Primary
Schoo! (4-11), The Woodlands Community Primary School (4-11), Stoneydelph Primary School (4-11),
Chadsmead Primary Academy (3-11), Stratford upon Avon Primary School (4-11), Budbrooke Primary School (4-
11), Dordon Community Primary School (4-11), Kingsway Primary School (4-11) and Wood End Primary School

(3-11).

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

We are a well established academy trust, rated highly by the DfE for our successful work in schoo! improvement.

Ofsted has virtually visited four of our schools during the year. Three (The Polesworth School, Grange Park
School and Heathcote Primary School) fed into Ofsted national reporting so that insights could be shared with
government and the education sector during the COVID pandemic. One (The Telford Park School) was a section
8 virtual monitoring visit and included a more detalled evaluation involving leaders and pupils across the schoo!.

Telford Park School: “Leaders and those responsible for governance are taking effective action to provide
education in the current circumstances” OFSTED, 315t March 2021. The lead inspector noted “the trust provides
effactive support in the current circumstances.. ... this support is helping curriculum leaders to continue to Improve
the quality of education.”

Our trust now has a national profile and we continue to respond to DFE approaches requesting support for
other organisations.

¢ Membership of national and regional roundtables

e Our CEO sits on the Warwickshire and Telford & Wrekin strategic educational boards and Is active in
local and national CEO networks and collaborations. Our CEO also supports and mentors new and more
experienced trusts, and is a National Leader of Education who contributes to the wider national school
improvement offer.

¢ Our Executive Director (Education) is a National Leader of Education who contributes to the wider
national school improvement offer

e Our Chair is an Academy Ambassador

¢ Our Executive Director (Finance and Operations) has supported other trusts

o Our trust led two teaching schools until December 2020. Since then our Trust has contlnued to provide
teacher training and school improvement support beyond its boundaries.

e Our trust is a member of the Confederation of School Trusts and The Queen Street Group.




Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Our trust is financially secure and well placed to continue to fulfill the trust’s objectives of school improvement in
the Interests of excellent community education.

With this in mind, the activities planned this coming year include:

o Utllise further the capacity of the schools in the trust to provide significant and bespoke professional
development for its staff.
Implement a new innovative approach to appraisal and professional growth for all staff in the trust.
Build leadership and school improvement capacity to ensure cutting edge resources and the latest
research and thought influences day to day practice in our schools.

e Explore further growth opportunities for the trust including Free School bids, new sponsored and
converter academies

o Continue to provide support for other trusts and schools as part of the national school improvement

offer.
Organisational Structure

Our vision is that our academies are led, managed and governed in groups that we call hubs. The following
picture describes the schools in the Trust.

The NWES Hub |

»  Birchwood Primary School (Nov 12) t
The Telford Hub ' «  Dordon Primairy Schoo! (Nov 12) %
+  The Telford Langley Schoel iNov 15) +  Wood End Primary School (Jan 14) COMMUNITY
+  The Telford Park School (Nov 15) < The Polesworth School (Nov 12) eapHAs ThLE
« The Tetford Priory School (Nov 15) i }*  The Wilnecote Schoot (Sept 2016)
« Grange Park Primary School (April 2016) « Chadsmead Primary School (Sept 2016)
*  Windmill Primary School (Aprll 2018) +  Stoneydelph Primary School {July 2018}

Woodlands Primary School (June 2019) 1

) .

lought;orough m

! shrewsbutyT "

¢ o:icgstcr .

1

Heathcote Primary School (Sept 2017)
Kingsway anary s:hool (Jawary 2021)

; e . Peterh
Hills Aren of
Outstanting Corby
Natural Geauty Kettering mi
) faw]
Northampton "
Worcester syaifork. o
°e ; N Bedford
. . ¢ AN °
The Central Warwickshire Hub ' .
_»  Budbrooke Primary School (Oct 14} , 8  Secondsry '
»  Stratford Primary School {March 2016) ' - oo
+  Woodloes Primary School (Mar 15) ' ° Primary |

Our ethos is to ensure the best local leaders lead local education provision (refer to
www.communityacademiestrusi.org). On this basis we have evolved our governance structure to put it as close
to provision as possible.
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Governors in our schools are different from traditional governors in that we consider them ‘Guardians of
Standards’. They are members of School Standards Committees (SSCs) and our trust enables them to be free
to focus entirely on holding the academies to account for the standards they achieve in Education, behaviour,
leadership and personal development, as well as ensuring that the hubs fulfill their goals as engines of school

improvement.

Academies in our trust sign up to some core principles. They are academies that are:

¢ Focused on achieving outstanding academic, personal and social outcomes for the children in their
care and this is the main priority.

Committed to the moral imperative of community school improvement and shared system leadership.
Mutually supportive, not in competition with each other and are fiercely loyal to aach other.

o [Equal partners with all other schools irrespective of their phase, size or successes. School size does
not matter, no one school.is more important than another, and resources are shared for the common
good of the group.

e Multi academy trust minded — our schools celebrate the success of others as well as themselves and
we feel a shared accountability and understand where ultimate responsibilities rest.

+ Financially disciplined and committed to our agreed financial principles.

Committed to fulfilling their delegated responsibilities to the best of their abilities.

Strategic Report

School buildings in our trust were partially closed following the UK government's decision to implement a
national lockdown in response to the covid-19 pandemic in the spring term. This had the following
organisational consequences:

+ Only vulnerable and disadvantaged pupils alongside the children of key workers were allowed to enter the
school buildings during the spring lockdown

* A number of staff were deployed in the schools to manage the provision and to employ every means
possible to encourage those pupils to attend schoo!.

e Other staff were asked to work from home and all other pupils were asked to learn from home

e Our schools rapidly deployed a model for remote learning that suited their cohorts, and parents were asked
to provide an environment conducive to study online and In some cases via paper based work packs. This
met all DfE expectations and the Continuity Direction to ensure continuity of education during government
restrictions.

¢ Rapid changes to HR, Health and Safety, governance and strategic planning, policy and practice were
made in response t0 government guidance, which trustees decided to follow in detail and to the letter.

¢ Onreturn to greater attendance in schools, government guidance was followed in full, including the use of
"bubbles” and provision of lateral flow testing for consenting pupils and staff. _

e Secondary school staff were asked to estimate GCSE and A Level grades for their Y11, and Y13 pupils
following the cancellation of the GCSE exams for a second year running.

¢ Primary school SATs and other tests were cancelled.

For the year as a whole:

o Attendance fell to well below the national averages seen in previous years, however remained above
national averages reported during the year both during lockdown and not.
Exclusions data remained stable when compared to last year.
Grades awarded to pupils by teachers at GCSE and A level were confirmed during the national moderation
processes, and the leve! of appeal following the issue of grades has baen extremely low.
¢ The profile of standards was marginally up on last year. However, no pupil sat an examination. As last
year, these results will not be published in the national performance tables and they are not to be used for
any other accountability purpose. (eg by OFSTED)
Some children of Key Workers' attended our schools every day including during the spring lockdown.
Attendance was higher in primary schools than secondary schools
All expectations were met with regard to onsite covid testing and schools partially closing and fuily opening.
All Risk Assessments were signed off by Trustees and consulted upon with staff.
All publishing requirements including remote learning plans and catch-up plans were met.

® & ¢ o o




Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

The local governance of standards continued throughout the year with half termly SSC meetings scrutinizing
reports analyzing the quality of provision, and termly scrutiny of trust wide standards from trustees.

Public Benefit

In the context described above, the trustees of Community Academies Trust have complied with their duty to
provide high quality education. Trustees have made reference to the Charity Commission guidance.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the company

In accordance with s.172 of the Companies Act 2006 the duty to promote the success of the trust was complied
with by our board of trustees through developing the trust Strategic Plan and in the following ways:

e All our community schools remained open throughout the year despite the covid-19 pandemic.

« Trust schools provided education to pupils that were not able to be in school, using remote learning, for
all periods of partial closure and self-isolation.

e All our schools have ensured that families entitled to free school meals in our communities have been
provided with either a meal or supermarket vouchers, either by ourselves directly or as a facilitator of the
national free school meals voucher scheme.

o Trustees have reviewed and agreed the risk assessments of further re-opening and full re-opening for
every school in our trust in line with the substantial guidance provided by the DfE to ensure the Health
and Safety of our employees, pupils and wider community.

e Our central administrative team have predominately worked from home during the course of the year,
utilising technology to maintain productivity and the controi of key risks remotely.

« Our headteachers both give and receive professional coaching. This has proved extremely valuable
during the pandemic with leaders stating it has supported their resilience and made the role less “lonely
in the face of a relentlessly evolving situation.

]

o The trust supports the professional development of all employees through our Developing People
Programme, led by our Teaching School.

« The trust has committed to environmental sustainability through our Estate Strategy and has continued
with building improvements throughout lockdown with the goal of keeping our estate safe, warm and dry.

s Kingsway primary school joined us on 1 January 2021, integrating well into our trust at a time where
colleagues could not physically meet.

« The trust’s long-term objective is the provision of free education in our communities. Our board of
trustees ensure this is at the heart of their governance of trust decisions.

e All of the above activity Is in pursuit of our charitable purpose and trustees are profoundly grateful to our
employees and governors for their dedication to our pupils and communities over this difficult time.

10
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Financia! Review

Most of the trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during
the year ended 31 August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement
of financial activities.

The trust also receives grants for tangible fixed assets and fixed asset donations. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2019), such grants or
donations are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The
restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the
assets concerned.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, total expenditure of £54.7 million (2020: £60.4 million) was covered by
recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources resulting in total incoming
resources of £68.4 million (2020: £47.6 million). Excluding transactions involving fixed assets and pension
liabilities the excess of income over expenditure for the year was £0.8m surplus (2020: £1.1m surplus). This
included reserves inherited from schools joining the Trust of £7k (2020: nil).

At 31 August 2021 the net book value of tangible fixed assets was £120.9 million (2020: £105.0 million) and
movements in tangible fixed assets are shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were used for
providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of the academy trust and for the provision
of leisure facilities to the community in accordance with the trust's Articles of Association.

At 31 August 2021 the LGPS pension liability was £35.0m (2020: £28.6m). This change was mainly due to an
operating charge of £2.2m (net of employer contributions), £0.4m deficit inherited on conversion of Kingsway
Primary Schoo! and to £3.8m loss due to changes in actuarial assumptions. Full details are shown in note 28.
Trustees intend to continue to follow the actuaries’ advice as regards future contributions in order that the scheme
Is in a position to pay pensions as they become due.

Impact of the covid-19 pandemic on the financial performance of the trust

The academy trust received £637k of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this funding
totaled £567k in 2020/21, with the remaining £70k to be spent in 2021/22. About 40% of this grant was spent on
direct instruction, 40% on targeted support and the remainder on ICT equipment, other resources and wider

support. )

The academy trust received a further £354k of funding related to the covid-19 pandemic. This was spent on the
provision of free school meals to pupils at home (£128k), on the provision of summer schools at 3 of our secondary
schools (£81k) and on costs related to the mass testing of secondary aged puplls (£144k).

The covid-19 pandemic has impacted adversely in the areas of the provision of leisure activities and childcare,
leading to a loss of income estimated at £0.3m. During this time all employees in these areas were retainad on full
pay and re-deployed to other duties where possible. Traded income before the pandemic was of the order of £1.5m
per annum and this has decreased to about £0.5m per annum over the last two years, although this has been
mitigated by reduced expenditure.

As external examinations were not held for year 11 and year 13 pupils due to covid-19, the trust received about
£160k refund against the exam fees budgeted for.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the academy trust is exposed, in particular those relating to
the teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the academy trust, and its finances. The trustees
have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the trust faces, especially in the operational areas
(e.g. In relation to teaching and learning and heaith and safety). They have introduced systems, including
operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk still
remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The academy trust has an effective system of
internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the Governance Statement.

1



Community Academies Trust

Reserves Policy

The trustees review the reserve levels of the trust termly. This review encompasses the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match income with commifments and the nature of reserves. The reason for
this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and recelpt of grants and to provide
a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. Reserves are also held to support
the trust's growth. Trustees currently target that the level of general reserves held should be sufficient to cover
both 1 month’s salary costs plus any known commitments. Current reserves are slightly above this target and
investments of £3m are held to cover this (note 14). Note 18 analyses the reserves of the trust between the
constituent academies and the central services.

At 31 August 2021, reserves held by the trust were as foliows:

Restricted Fixed Assets £121.5m
Restricted general excluding Pensions £5.0m
Restricted pension (£35.0 m) (deficit)
Unrestricted £09m
Total £924 m

The balance held on restricted fixed assets included £0.7m of School Condition Allocation and other capital grants
received, earmarked for specific projects, the majority of which it is expected will be spent within the next financial
year. The remainder of the restricted fixed assets fund (£120.8m) can only be realised by disposing of tangible
fixed assets.

Restricted general funds (excluding pensions) includes £232k of earmarked grants and donations, which it is
anticipated will be spent within the next 24 months. The rest of the balance on both restricted general funds and

unrestricted funds will be used for educational purposes in accordance with the objects of the trust and the
reserves policy approved by trustees.

As with many members of the LGPS, the pension schemes are in deficit. Trustees intend to continue to follow the
actuaries’ advice as regards future contributions in order that the scheme is in a position to pay pensions as they
become due. It is anticipated that employer contributions into the fund will rise in future years.

Investment Policy

Trustees believe that low risk bank deposit accounts are the most appropriate place to invest surplus cashflow.
Advice is taken from the trust’s bankers and funds invested as follows:

Working capital is invested in a bank current account or equivalent. It is recognised that a small amount of interest
is payable on this balance but our bankers offer academies free banking which resulits in this lower interest rate.

Surplus cash Is invested in a mixture of notice accounts with a UK based banking provider to earn higher interest
rates than on the current account but to stagger easy access to funds over the year to meet cashflow requirements.

Any interest earned is paid into the trust central budget to benefit all schools within our trust.
Balances invested are reported to trustees on a termly basis.

Trustees do not intend to invest reserves in stocks and shares or other volatile investments as they do not feel
these represent an acceptable level of risk 1o the trust.
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

To achieve our vision we need to be aware of the principal risks that affect our work. The trustees have
assessed the major risks to which the trust is exposed by reviewing and interrogating a risk register. The
risks we face in a rapidly changing education landscape continue to evolve over time, but we summarise them
under 10 strategic risks:

The risk that we do not meet our governance obligations

The risk we cannot use our school premises to deliver education
The risk that our school premises are not safe

The risk that we are not a good employer

The risk that we are financially unsustainable

The risk that we do not comply with financial requirements

The risk that growth is notin line with trust objectives

The risk that schools do not obtain excellent outcomss for learners
The risk a child in our care is not safe

The risk that our reputation prevents us from achieving our goals

The board of trustees reviews the risk register annually. The audit committee of the trust has the monitoring and
mitigation of risk at the centre of its remit and carries out an in depth review of selected strategic risks on a cyclical
basis. The executive leadership of the trust also review all risks annually and mitigation of risk is incorporated into
the trust's strategic plan and the performance objectives of individual staff members.

At present areas which the board consider to be high risk include:

Pupil and staff well-being in the context of the ongoing covid-19 pandemic.

Pupil achievement in the context of the covid-19 pandemic.

Pupil safeguarding in the context of the covid-19 pandemic.

The attendance of our most vulnerable pupils

Education funding nationally, including the extreme pressure on the high needs budget in each Local

Authority.

e Future unfunded cost pressures and uncertainty, including the likelihood of a period of inflation in energy
and building materials.

« The relationship between equal pay and TUPE when accepting schools into the trust from previous

organisations which operated on a number of different pay and grading schemes.

Over the year numerous actions have been taken to mitigate risk and improve consistency including:

e A standardised risk assessment process for all schools operating in line with DfE covid-19 guidance
Planned series of internal audit and other checking procedures including annual safeguarding reviews,
safer recrultment, financial probity, school census completion, health & safety and consistent school

condition reports.
» Development of reporting on health and safety checks, risk assessment and staff training across the
trust.
+ Development of a single professional development programme for all our employees utilising a coaching
maodel.
Fundraising

The academy trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising at a local level, mindful of the communities within
which it operates. In the circumstances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to
separate and protect funds. The trust is mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protection and Social
Investment) Act 2016 and legal rules, and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored at Senior Leadership
Team level in each school in compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied to ensure
that fundraising is open, honest and respectful, protecting the public from undue pressure to donate. Complaints
are handled and monitored through the trust's complaints procedure.

Due to the covid-19 pandemic, fundraising has been curtailed as people are unable to gather for normal school
fundraising activities.

13



Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

[ UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use 1 September 2020 to 1 September 2019 to
data for the period 31 August 2021 31 August 2020
Energy consumption use to calculate emissions (kWh) 12,601,703 12,761.869
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 1634.99 1792.99
Owned transport — mini-buses 223 2.21
Total scope 1 1637.22 1795.20
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electricity 844.785 688.30
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles S 5.37 18.21
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e | 2487.35 __.2502.71
Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil o ___0.296 e 0.311 |

Quantification and Reporling Methodology

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ration for the sector.

Measures taken to improve enerqy efficiency

We have converted lighting in all our schools to low energy where practical. We also continue in a program to
increase insulation and modernise bailers to improve efficiency in the heating of our schools. We have applied
for grants to replace gas fired boilers with heat pump technology, but so far have been unsuccessful. The covid-
19 pandemic has increased the use of video conferencing and reduced the need for travel between sites, but the
increased ventilation requirement has also increased heating costs.

Plans for Future Periods

The trust is implementing “Growing Great People” which ensures that all our employees have access to coaching
and support to allow them to grow professionally within our organisation without this being linked to pay. This will
be fully operational in the 2021/22 financial year.

Our revised school improvement mode! seeks to further harness the skills and expertise of our employees to
meet our charitable aims. Expert groups, trust networks and deveiopment projects are underway and will
encourage a collaborative way of working across our trust.

The trust’'s growth model is based around the governance of school improvement hubs as described earlier in
this report. We have decided that an optimum size for a hub Is 6 academies and therefore the hub in North
Warwickshire is over capacity and it is likely that a further hub will be formed in the future. The two other hubs
do have space for further academies to join them if they are in the same geagraphical vicinity. The hub model
can also be replicated and growth decisions going forward will be based on groups of academies forming new
hubs rather than growth via isolated single academies.

The trustees have also identified this growth as a further means of developing capacity and would envisage any
new hub joining our organisation would bring with it sufficient capacity to fulfill the expectation of a self improving
group of academies. By growing in this way within a single multi academy trust, the trust feels that it will be better
placed to meet the challenges posed by changes to school funding arrangements, levels of income and changes
likely to affect our fixed costs, which continue to rise in line with pay rises, incremental drift in staff salaries and
inflation.
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Community Academies Trust
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others

The trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for fhe ESFA. Financial information is provided
in note 30 to the accounts. ’ ,

Auditor

During the year the trust carried out a competitive procurement process and Mazars were appointed as auditors
to the trust for the 2020/21 financial year. Our previous auditors, RSM, formally resigned, but completed some
outstanding work in the year including auditing the Teachers’ Pension Return and completion of a corporation
tax return for 2019/20. Mazars have indicated their willingness to continue in office. :

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
The trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware. Each of the trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to

have taken as trustees in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
it has been communicated to the auditor.

The Trustees’ Annual Report is approved by order of the board of trustees and the Strategic Report (included
therein) is approved by the board of trustees in their capacity as the directors at a meeting on 8 December 2021
and signed on its behalf by: ‘

5&%/

Mr. S Atkins

Chair of Trustees

8 December 2021
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Community Academies Trust
Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Community Academies Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
Competency framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Community Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in
internal control.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The main board of trustees met 6 times during the year. Attendance
at meetings during the year was as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr. S Atkins (Chair) 6 6
Mr. G Brown 6 6
Mr. S Mason 5 6
Mr. S Sibley 6 6
Mrs. S Stewart 6 6
Mr. R Vernon 6 6
Rev. S Wallis 6 6

Governance reviews

New members have aiso been actively sought, using Academy Ambassadors, and additional members were
appointed by the existing members on 11 November 2020 and 10 December 2020.

All meetings of the trustees and their sub-committees, including the school standard committees, have been carried
out virtually.

Audit Committee

The audit committee is a sub committee of the main board of trustees. The purpose of the audit committee is to
advise the board on matters relating to the trust's audit arrangements, risk and systems of internal control and to
aid the board’s responsibility to ensure sound management of the trust's finances and resources. Attendance at
meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr G Brown (Chair) 3 3
Mr. S Atkins 2 3
Mr. S Mason 3 3
Mr. S Sibley 2 3
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Community Academies Trust
‘Governance Statement (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is a sub committee of the main board of trustees. The purpose of the remuneration
committee is to advise the board on matters relating to executive pay. Attendance at meetings during the year was
as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr. S Mason (chair) 2 2
Mr. S Atkins 2 2
Mrs. S Stewart 1 2
Mr. R Vernon 2 2

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer has delivered improved value for money during

the year by:

e Continuing to invest in the fabric of our buildings to ensure they remain safe, warm and dry
¢ Continuing to carry out competitive procurement processes In line with our policies, despite the restrictions
placed on us by the covid-19 pandemic.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelthood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Community Academies Trust for the year
to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is
of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees. The Audit Committee

considers risk at every meeting.

Trustees are aware of their responsibilities and have directed a number of reviews to carry out regular scrutiny
of financial and other data. The system of internal control aims to provide as much assurance as is reasonably
possible (not absolute assurance) that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorised and
recorded and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or can be detected promptly.




Community Academies Trust
Governance Statement (continued)

The Risk and Control Framework

The trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular it includes:

» Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial -
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees,

e Regular reviews by the board of trustees of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

o Setting targets to measure financial and other performance including the comparison of key
performance indicators;

s Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
Delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

¢ |dentification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint RB
Chartered Accountant to act as internal auditor as directed by the audit committee. The appointment of RB
Chartered Accountant is in line with the FRC Ethical Standard for auditors as the internal auditor remains
independent of the external auditor.

The internal auditor performed a range of checks on the academy trust’s financial systems. A sample of schools
has been visited over the course of the year and a targeted review undertaken of controls in the schools. The
audit committee received a number of reports on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of
the board of trustees’ financia! responsibilities.

During the year September 2020 to August 2021, themed financial risk reviews were carried out by RB Chartered
Accountants concerning the following:

« Testing of purchase systems

On a termly basis the internal auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the audit committee on the operation
of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustee’s financial responsibilities and annually
prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year of year progress.

The schedule of work as planned by the audit committee has been delivered. The impact of the lockdown due to
the covid-19 pandemic has meant that work was carried out remotely. Any control issues highlighted have been
or are being resolved.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year this has been informed by:

The work of the themed risk reviews

The work of the external auditor

The financial management and governance self-assessment process

The work of the Executive Director (Finance and Operations) and finance team who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework

* o o o

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Trustees and a plan to address weaknesses if relevant and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trusteWDecember 20214any signed on j
S SR — | ~
- /(‘}’i‘-:/ C_/ 2

Mr. S Atkins ™ Mr. P Hanyliiton
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer




Community Academies Trust
Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Community Academies Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the
Academy Trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements
of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the Community Academies Trust board of trustees are able to identify any material iregular
or improper use of funds by the trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the trust’s fundmg agreement and the Academles Financ|a| Handbook 2020

| confirm that no instances of material wregularity Improprlety or funding non—oompllanoe have been dlscovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA.

Mr. P Hamiiton
Accounting Officer

8 December 2021




Community Academies Trust
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The trustees (who act as governors of Community Academies Trust and are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report (including the
strategic report) and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

»  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« QObserve the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021;

* Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charltable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included

on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financlal statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
Mr.S Atkins

Chair of Trustees




Community Academies Trust
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Community Academies Trust

Year Ending 31 August 2021

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Community Academies Trust (‘the ‘Academy Trust') for the year ended
31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities (including income and expenditure account),
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financlal statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Accounting
and Reporting by Charities; Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to Charities (Charities SORP 2019) and
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2020
to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibllities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements Is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contalned within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required

to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Community Academies Trust
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Community Academies Trust
Year Ending 31 August 2021 (continued)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
o the information given in the Trustees' Report including the incorporated Strategic Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and
¢ the Trustees’ Report including the incorporated Strategic Report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the incorporated Strategic
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibllities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement set out on page 20, the trustees are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and its industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to the funding agreement with the Department of Education, UK tax
legislation, pensions legislation, employment regulation and health and safety regulation, anti-bribery, corruption and
fraud, money laundering, non-compliance with implementation of government support schemes relating to COVID-
18, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements, such as the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

We evaluated the trustees' and management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to




Community Academies Trust
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Community Academies Trust

Year Ending 31 August 2021 (continued)

posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through judgements and
assumptions in significant accounting estimates and significant one-off or unusual transactions.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with laws and
regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit procedures included but
were not limited to:
» Discussing with the trustees and management their policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws
and regulations;
¢ Communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and _
« Considering the risk of acts by the company which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud.

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:
» Making enquiries of the trustees and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud;
Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud;
Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and
Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controts by performing journal entry testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management. As with any audit, there remained a
risk of non-detection of Irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.

A further description of our respansibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's

report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and the
Academy Trust's members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

David Hoose (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Park View House

58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham
NG1 5DW

lg December 2021
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Community Academies Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Community
Academies Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement ietter dated 5 October 2021 and further to the requirements of the Education &
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the extant Framework and Guide for Exteral Auditors and Reporting Accountants of
Academy Trusts, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Community Academies Trust during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to
the purposes (dentified by Pariament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govemn them.

This report is made solely to Community Academies Trust and the ESFA in accordanca with the terms of our engagement letter.
QOur work has been undertaken so that we might state to Community Academies Trust and the ESFA those matters we are
required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Community Academies Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this repont, or for the conclusion

we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Community Academies Trust's Accounting Officer and the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Community Academies Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 10 December 2013 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September
2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parllament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and are to
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the extant Framework and
Gulide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts. We report to you whether anything has come to our
attention In carmmying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes Intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant of
Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. ’

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order .
to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable -
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy trust’s
income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

*
e  Planning our assurance procedures including identifying key risks;
e Carrying out sample testing on controls;
+ Carmrying out substantive testing including analytical review; and
« Concluding on procedures carried out.
Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed
and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Mojan I/

Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory auditor
Park View House

58 The Ropewalk

Nottingham

NG1 5DW
\3 December 2021
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Community Academies Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2021
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
Funds General Fixed 2021 2020
£000 ‘Funds Asset £000 (Restated)
-£000 Funds £000
£000

Income and endowments

from:

Donations and capitalgrants = 2 . , 10 7 14,106 = 14,123 = 1,869
Transfer from local ' ‘ ' ' oo '
authority on conversion 3 7 (360) 4150 3,797 i

Charitable activities
Funding for the Academy
Trust's educational 3 594 49,149 - 49,743 44,807
operations

Teaching School 32 - . 273 - 273 260

Other trading activities 4 488 - - 488 610

Investments 5 14 - - 14 48

Total 1113 49069 18256 68,438 47,504

Expenditure on: _

Raising funds 6 (568) < - (568) = (469)

Charitable activities:

Academy Trust educational
operations 7 (721) (49,609) (3,264) (53,594) (49,67‘()

Teaching School 32 .- (504) . - (504) (260)

Total (_1 ,289) (50,113) (3,264) (54,666) {50,406)

Net income / (expenditure) (176) (1,044) 14,992 13,772 (2,812)

Transfers between funds 18 - (544) 544 - -

Other recognised gains /

(losses)

Re-measurement of net , -

defined benefit obligation 28 - (3766) - (3768)  (1.470)

Net movement in funds (176) (5.354) 15,536 10,006 (4,282)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward ' '

(as previously stated) 18 1,093 (24,602) 105,916 82,407 72,390

Prior year adjustment 33 - - - - 14,299

Total funds carried ' N '

forward 917 {(29,956) 121,452 92,413 82,407
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Community Academies Trust

Company Number 07472736

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2021

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Other Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and (n hand

Current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling
due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling
due after more than one year

‘Net assets excluding
pension liability
Defined benefit pension
scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy
Trust:

Restricted income funds
Fixed asset fund

General fund

Pension reserve
Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

General fund
Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Notes

12
14

15
25

16

17

28

18
18

18

18

£000

1,775
6,422
8,197

(4,552)

2021
£000

120,891
3,000

3,645
127,593
(210)
127,383

(34,970)
92,413

121,452
5,014

(34,970)

91,496

917
917

92,413

2020 (Restated)
£000 £000

75
104,972
3,750

2,097
4,062
6,159

(3.661)

2,498
111,295

(274)

111,021

(28,614)
‘ 82,407 .

105,916
4,012
(28,614)

81,314

1,093
1,093

82,407

The financial statements on pages 26 to 55 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on
- 8 December 2021 and are signed on their behalf by:

S Ay —

Mr. S Atkins
Chair of Trustees
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Community Academies Trust
Statement qf c§sh Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Notes 2021 2020

£000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
" Net cash provided by operating activities 22 - 2,408 854
Cash flows from investing activities 23 6 608
Cash flows from financing activities 24 (54) 212

v Change In cash and cash equlvéienté in thé repéttlng o _ . i

period 2,360 1,774
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 4,062 2,288
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 25 6,422 4,062
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021

Community Academies Trust is a charitable company incorporated in the UK. The address of its principal
place of business is given on page 1 and the nature of its operations is set out in the Trustees’ Report.

1. Statement of accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional currency of the academy
trust.

Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £'000, except where
otherwise stated.

Going Concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate and whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees have made this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation of the financial statements and have
concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt
is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

. Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is
deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance —related conditions
are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities in full in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability. Any unspent amount [s reflected as a balance in the restricted general
fund.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1.

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital grants are recognised when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.
Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended.

The academy trust is benefiting from the ESFA’s Priority Schools Building Programme. The
funding for the programme is not recognised as a capital grant until there is an unconditional
entittement from costs being incurred, and the development occurring on a site where the
academy trust controls (through lease) the site where the development is occurring. The
expenditure is capitalised once the assets are under the control of the trust.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related
conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfers into the Trust

The transfer of schools into the academy trust, involves the transfer of identifiable assets and
liabilities and the operation of the schools for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The net assets transferred to the academy trust are valued at their fair values. The fair values are
derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts are recognised under the appropriate
balance sheet categaries, with a corresponding amount recognised in Donations - transfer from
local authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under
unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Donated fixed assets

Fixed assets donated to the trust are measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure
this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised
as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset
category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's

accounting policies.
Interest

Interest is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis and is stated
inclusive of related tax credits.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to
a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each
activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in
undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the

portion of the asset’s use.

* Expenditure on Raising Funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes

and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

= Charitable Activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and

costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets costing £25,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits
are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. This is a change from the
previous accounting policy, which was to capitalise assets costing £5,000 or more. Intangible assets are
Initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision
for impairment. Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated fo write off the

cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
Purchased computer software 20% (5 years)

Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £25,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. This is a change from the previous accounting policy,

which was to capitalise assets costing £6,000 or more.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such

assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasehold land is capitalised at estimated cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
This is a change from the previous accounting policy, which was to not capitalise leasehold land.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write
off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life to its residual value, as
follows:

Freehold buildings ‘ 2% (50 years)

Long leasehold buildings 2% (50 years)

Long Leasehold Land Period of lease (normally 125 years)
Building improvements 7% (15 years)

Furniture and equipment 10-15% (6-10 years)

Computer equipment 33.3% (3 years)

Motor Vehicles 25% (4 years)

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value
of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as Impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Fixed Asset Investments

Cash held in deposit accounts with a notice period greater than one year are classified as fixed asset
investments. They are measured at cost less impairment.

Liabllities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event,
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount It has received as advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of
a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts,

discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statemen_i_s for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments

The academy trust holds only basic financial instruments as defined in FRS102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and sacial security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act

2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1892, to the extent that such income or gains are applied

exclusively to charitable purposes.

F’enslons Benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme

(‘'TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
benefit method. As stated in note 28, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient
information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which

they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency
to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surpius are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liabllity/asset is also recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by muitiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at
the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between
the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in

other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately as other comprehensive income.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Fund Accounting

Unresfricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the

charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed

by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for

Education.

Agency Arrangements

The academy ftrust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments
received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of
financial activities as the Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation toward its own administration costs and this Is recognised in the
statement of financial activities. The funds received are paid and any balances held are disclosed in note

30.

Short-term employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the academy trust. The
cost of any unused holiday entitlement the academy trust expects to pay in future periods is recognised

in the period the employees' services are rendered where material.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The academy frust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed befow.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liabllity depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for psnsions include the discount rate. Any

changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the

penslon liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2020 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full

actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Where school premises are held on a licence to occupy pending a full legal transfer, they are treated as
a donation at the time the school joins the frust and valued in accordance with the substance of the
transaction. The premises at The Telford Langley school are therefore held as a freehold and the
premises at Kingsway Community Primary school as leasehold despite the legal title at the year end

being that they are held under a licence to occupy.

Investments held in 1 year savings accounts are treated as fixed assets as the intention is to reinvest

these. They are held in accordance with the trust Reserves policy.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Impaiment of assets
Where indicators of impairment are Identified, management will carry out an impairment review at the

period end, to establish whether the carrying value of the affected asset or asset group remains
appropriate. This involves the exercise of judgement by management.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

2. Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2021 2020

£000 £000 ~ £000 £000

Capital grants - 1,537 1,537 1,732

Donated fixed assets - 12,569 12,569 95

Other donations 10 7 17 42
Total 2021 10 14,113 14,123

Total 2020 : ] 10 1,859 ' 1,869

3. Funding for the academy trust’s educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 40,322 40,322 36,894
Other DfE/ESFA grants
UIFSM - 425 425 437
Pupil Premium - 2,734 2,734 2,51
Teacher Pension and Pay Grants - 1,893 1,893 1.823
Others - 207 807 774
Other DfE Group Grants - 69 69 -
- 46,350 46,350 42,439
Other Government grants
Local Authority grants - 1,635 1,635 1,135
Covid-19 additional funding (DfE/ ESFA)
Catch-up premium - 637 637 -
Other DfE/ ESFA covid-19 funding - 354 354 79
- 2,626 2,626 1,214
Other income from the academy trust's
educational operations
School trips 66 - 66 337
Catering income 261 - 261 288
Other income 267 173 440 529
594 173 767 1,154
Total 2021 594 49,149 49,743 i
Total 2020 1,015 43,792 ) 44,807

The academy trust received £637k of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this funding
totaled £567k, with the remaining £70k to be spent in 2021/22.

The academy trust received £354k of funding for the provision of free school meals to pupils at home, for the
provision of summer schools at our secondary schools and for mass testing of secondary aged pupils. These
costs are included in notes 6 and 7 below as appropriate.

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from the
Department of Education and ESFA, the academy trust's funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals
(UISFM), Pupil Premium and Teacher Pension and Pay grants is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group
grants heading, but as separate lines under the Other DfE/ ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have
been reclassified.




Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

4. Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 . £000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities 142 - 142 157
Catering income 7 - 7 8
Other income 339 - 339 445
Total 2021 488 - 488
Total 2020 451 159 610
5. Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Short term deposits 14 - 14 48
Total 2021 14 - 14
Total 2020 48 - 48
8. Expenditure
Staff Non Pay Totaf Total
Costs Expenditure 2021 2020
Restated
Other
Premises Costs
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on raising funds 158 102 308 568 469
Academy Trust educational operations
* Direct costs 35,563 3,113 4,902 43,578 39,827
= Allocated support costs 5,512 1,586 2,918 10,016 9,850
Teaching School - 302 - 112 504 260
Total 2021 41,625 4,801 8,240 54,666
Total 2020 (Restated) 37,702 5,277 7427 50,406

The expenditure on raising funds, teaching school and educational operations was £54,666,000 (2020:
£50,406,000) of which £1,289,000 was unrestricted (2020: £1,574,000), £50,113,000 restricted (2020:
£44,907,000) and £3,264,000 restricted fixed assets (2020: £3,925,000).

Net income/(expenditure) for the period
includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation

Impairment

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Net interest on defined benefit pension
liability ‘

Fess payable to auditor for
- Statutory audit
- other assurance services

2

021

£000

79

3,095

18
506

2020

Restated
£000
99
2,761
1,164
15

462
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 {(continued)

7. Charitable activities ~ academy trust educational operations

Total Total
2021 2020
£000 Restated
, £000
Direct costs -~ educationa! operations 43,578 39,827
Support costs - educational operations , 10,016 , 9,850
. . . 53,594 49,677
Analysis of support costs Total Total
2021 2020
. £000 £000
Support staff costs _ : 5,512 4,478
Technology costs . 269 82
Premises costs 1,586 1,307
Legal costs-conversion 14 -
Legal costs-other . 29 80
Other support costs o ‘ . 2,551 , 3,674
Governance costs 65 219
10,016 . 9,850
8. Staff numbers and costs
a. Staff costs
2021 2020
£000 £000
‘Wages and salaries : - 28,957 26,497 -
Social security costs 2,727 2,458
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 8,762 7,806
Apprenticeship Levy ’ 129 119
Total Staff costs ‘ 40,565 36,970
Other Costs )
Supply teacher costs 1,010 697
Staff restructuring costs 50 35
Total _.-41,625 37,702
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments : : ! 19 35
Other restructuring costs . ) 31 -

_ 50 - 35

No specific funding was received or receivable to support the restructuring payments in respect of the
current or prior year.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)_

b. Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/ non-contractual severance payments totalling
£14,000 (2020: £17,844). Individually the payments were £14,000.

c. . Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the period expressed by
headcount was as follows:

2021 2020

Number Number

Teachers 462 442
Administration and support 729 749
Management . 36 33
1,227 1,224

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the period expressed as fuil-time
equivalents was as follows:

2021 2020

Number Number

Teachers 430 392
Administration and support 411 406
Management 33. 33
874 831

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2021 2020

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 14 13
£70,001 - £80,000 10 11
£80,001 - £80,000 6 4
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
£100,001 - £110,000 2 3
£110,001 - £120,000 , 1 -
£120,001 - £130,000 - 1
£130,001 - £140,000 1 -
£160,001 - £170,000 1 1
36 34

One of the above employees barticipates in the Local Governrﬁent Pension Scheme and all of the other

above employees participate in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. Both schemes are defined benefit
schemes.

38

L]



Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

10.

¢. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Executive
Director (Education), Executive Director (Finance and Operations) and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer NI) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was
£2,335,294 (2020: £2,253,264).

Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ Remuneration & Expenses

No trustees were paid remuneration or received other benefits from an employment with the academy
trust.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £nil (2020: £1,136) were
reimbursed to trustees (2020 5 trustees). This expense predominately related to mileage claims.

Other related party transactions involving trustees are set out in note 29.

Central services

The academy trust has carried the following central services during the year on behalf of all its schools:

School improvement
Financial services (including finance and budget management software)
Payroll management (including payroll software)
Human Resources

Trade union facilities time

Asset management

Health & Safety (including compliance software)
Staff development

Risk management

Treasury management

Statutory reporting

The trust delegates 96% of GAG, sixth form and nursery funding received to the school for which it is
allocated by the ESFA/ Local Authority. The remaining 4% is retained by the trust to provide the central

services as listed above.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

10. Central Services (continued)

The actual amounts retained by the trust during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Birchwood Primary School 65 60
Budbrooke Primary School 33 35
Chadsmead Primary Academy 43 43
Dordon Primary School 36 34
Grange Park Primary School 81 76
Heathcote Primary Schoo! 36 25
Kingsway Primary School 22 -
The Polesworth School 298 286
Stoneydelph Primary School 51 52
Stratford-upon-Avon Primary School 33 30
The Telford Langley School 207 176
The Telford Park School 138 123
The Telford Priory School 209 197
Wilnecote High School 157 142
Windmill Primary Schoot 72 70
Wood End Primary School 24 23
The Woodlands Community Primary School 46 44
Woodloes Primary School 63 61
1,614 1,477

11. Trustees and officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy
business, and provides unlimited cover. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers’ indemnity
element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme. '

12. Intangible Fixed Assets

Computer Total
Software 2020/21
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 September 2020 . 90 80
Additions - -
At 31 August 2021 90 . 90
Amortisation
At 1 September 2020 15 15
Charged in period .18
At 31 August 2021 33 15
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2020 .15 15
At 31 August 2021 57 57




Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

13. Tangible Fixed Assets

Freehold Long Leasehold Fumiture
Land & Leasehold Improvements and  Computer Motor
Buildings Land & Equipment Equipment  Vehicles Total
Buildings '
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 September 2020
(Restated) 60,080 48,562 7,194 2,836 2,702 13 121,397
Reclassification (838) (2085) 1,044 (21) 19 1 .
Transfer on
conversion - 4,150 - - - - 4,150
Additions 3,949 8,667 1,615 32 601 - 14,864
Disposals - (1,440) - - (59) (5) (1,504)
At 31 August 2021 63,201 50,734 9,853 2,847 3263 9 138,907
Depreclation
At 1 September 2020
(restated) 4,539 5,919 1,376 2,277 2,301 13 16,425
Reclassification (43) 105 (62) (1) - 1 -
Charged in period 992 753 734 337 279 - 3,095
Disposals - (1,440) - - (59) (5) (1,504)
At 31 August 2021 5,488 5,337 2,048 2,613 2,521 9 18,016
Net book values
At31August2021 87,713 54,397 7,805 234 742 = 120,891
At 31 August 2020 55,551 42643 5818 559 401 - 104,972

The trust’s transactions relating to land and buildings included:

A substantial leasehold new block at The Polesworth School which was donated by the Department for

- Education through their PSBP2 programme at a value of £5.624m. This block replaced 3 other blocks at the
school which were disposed of during the year, having been fully impaired in the previous year.

A substantial leasehold extension at Heathcote Primary School which was donated to the trust by
Warwickshire County Council to expand the school from 210 capacity to 420 at a value of £2.694m.

A substantial freehold new block at The Telford Langley School which was donated to the trust by Telford &

Wrekin Council to expand the school by 300 pupil places at a value of £3.949m.

The acquisition of the leasehold at Kingsway Primary School which was donated to the trust by Warwickshire
County Council on conversion at a value of £4.150m.

A prior year adjustment due to a change of accounting policy to capitalise and depreciate leasehold land.

The reclassification of historic asset purchases to ensure they are correctly classified as leasehold

improvements.
14.  Other Investments
2021 2020
£000 £000
One year deposits with Lloyds bank 3,000 3,750
3,000 3,750
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Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)_

15.

16.

17. - Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

cfeditors: Amounts falling due within one yeaf

Trade creditors

Taxation and social security
Loans

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred Income at 1 September
Released from previous year
Resources deferred in the year
Deferred income at 31 August

2021 2020
£000 £000
237 139
382 236
1,156 1,722
1,775 2,007
2021 2020
£000 £000
1,276 598
683 599
63 60
838 794
1,602 1,610
4,552 3,661
2021 2020
£000 £000
624 644
(624) (644)
466 624
466 624

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for grants

including £251k for UIFSM, £145k for rates and £70k for other grants.

Loans

2021 2020
£000 £000
210 274
210 274

The trust holds “Salix” and "SEEF” loans from the Government. The total amount owed as at 31
August 2021 is £273k of which £63k is repayable in the next financial year, £205k payable within 5

years and £5k payable after 5 years.

These loans are provided to support energy efficient capital investment, are unsecured and no interest

is charged.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18. Funds

At1 Incoming Resources Gains, At
September Resources Expended Losses 31 August
2020 and 2021
Restated v Transfers
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3,009 40,322 (38,303) (544) 4,484
UIFSM - 425 (425) - -
Pupil Premium - 2,734 (2,734) - -
Catch-up premium - 637 (581) - 56
Other DfE/ ESFA Covid 19 - 354 (354) - -
funding
Pension reserve (28,614) (360) (2,230) (3,766) (34,970)
Other grants 1,003 4,957 (5,486) - 474
T (24,602) 49,069  (50,113) (4,310) (29,956)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants 7.144 1,637 (244) - 8,437
Transfer on conversion 42,413 4,150 (1,095) - 45,468
Transfer on business 48,281 - (1,649) - 46,632
combination
Asset donations 6,803 12,569 (232) - 19,140
Capital Expenditure from GAG 1,249 - (43) 544 1,750
Private capital sponsorship 26 - 1) - 25
105,916 18,256 (3,264) 544 121,452
Total restricted funds 81,314 67,325 (53,377) (3,768) 91,496
Total unrestricted funds 1,083 1,113 (1,289) - 917
Total funds ) 82,407 68,438 (54,666)  (3,766) 92,413

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2021,

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds

The balance of £5,014,000 on the restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) includes £231,000
of grants which are earmarked for specific ongoing expenditure. These, along with the remaining balance
on this fund will be used for educational purposes in accordance with the restrictions attached to the funding,
as will the balance of £917,000 held on unrestricted funds.

The pension reserve of (£34,970,000) (overdrawn) represents the academy trust's share of the deficits in
the LGPS funds in Warwickshire, Staffordshire & Shropshire. The liability has increased by £2,230,000 (net
of employer contributions) due to operating and finance charges in the year and by £360,000 inherited on
the conversion of Kingsway Primary School. There has also been an actuarial loss of £3,766,000 in the year
as detailed in note 28.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18. Funds (continued)
Restricted fixed asset funds

The restricted fixed assets funds relate predominantly to the assets acquired when schools join the academy
trust on conversion or by business combination or by donation. These are disclosed further in note 13. A
School Condition Alfocation grant of £1,346,000 was received in the year and £598,000 of the fixed assets
fund relates to unspent School Condition Aflocation grant which it is planned to spend in the new financial
year. £90,000 of the fixed asset fund relates to unspent Devolved Formula Capital grant which it is planned
to spend in the new financial year. £49,000 of the fixed asset fund relates to a sinking fund for the
replacement of leisure facilities. The transfer of £544,000 from GAG funds to the fixed asset reserve
represents the use of GAG income on fixed assets.

Comparative restated information in respect of the previous period is as follows:

Gains,
At1 Losses At
September  Incoming Resources and 31 August
2019 Resources  Expended Transfers 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 1,594 38,236 (36,552) (269) 3,009
Pupil Premium - 2,511 (2,511) - -
Pension reserve (25,064) - (2,080} (1,470) (28,614)
Other grants 1,271 3,496 (3,764) - 1,003
(22,199) 44243 _  (44,907) (1,739) (24,602)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants 5,569 1,732 (157) - 7,144
Transfer on conversion 44,549 - (2,136) - 42,413
Transfer on business combination 49,688 - (1,407) - 48,281
Asset donations 6,903 95 (195) - 6,803
Capital Expenditure from GAG 1,009 - (29) 269 1,249
Private capital sponsorship 27 - (1) - 26
107,745 1,827 (3,925) 269 105,916
Total restricted funds 85,546 46,070 (48,832) (1,470) 81,314
Total unrestricted funds 1,143 1,524 (1,574) - 1,093
Total funds 86,689 47,594 (50,406)  (1,470) 82,407
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18. Funds (continuad)

Total funds analysis by school
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:
Total 2021 Total 2020

Restated

£00C £000

Birchwood Primary School 302 258
Budbrooke Primary School 137 125
Chadsmead Primary Academy 381 401
Dordon Primary School 634 463
Grange Park Primary School 188 128
Heathcote Primary School 278 221
Kingsway Primary School 71 -
Stoneydelph Primary School 72 103
Stratford-upon-Avon Primary School 75 120
The Telford Langley School 261 185
The Telford Park School 327 140
The Telford Priory Schoo! 345 544
The Polesworth School 1,355 1,280
The Wilnecote School (161) (319)
Windmill Primary Schoo! 187 186
Wood End Primary School 132 132
The Woodlands Community Primary School 417 372
Waoaodloes Primary Schoo! 243 179
CAT Teaching School - 231
Community Academies Trust (Central Services) 787 356
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 5,931 5,105
Restricted fixed asset fund 121,452 105,916
Pension reserve __{34,970) (28,614)
Total 92,413 82,407

The Wiinecote School was in deficit at 31 August 2021 as shown above. This is a planned position as a result of
lagged funding in respect of pupil growth, supported by the reserves of the trust overall. The school has prepared
a recovery plan and this has been approved by the board of trustees. Governors anticipate that it will take until
August 2024 for the school to be out of deficit and progress against this plan Is being formally monitored on a
termly basis.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

18. Funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by Academy

Expenditure incurred by each Academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other
Educational Support
support staff Educational Other costs
staff costs costs supplies ~ (excl. Dep) Total 2021 Total 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Birchwood Primary School 1,330 170 131 282 1,913 1,721
Budbrooke Primary School 654 121 57 190 1,022 1,065
Chadsmead Primary Academy 923 143 96 163 1,325 1,304
Dordon Primary School 720 61 91 132 1,004 996
Grange Park Primary School 1,617 435 162 243 2,457 2,342
Heathcote Primary School 848 95 101 179 1,223 840
Kingsway Primary School 483 51 46 70 650 -
Stoneyde!ph Primary Schoo! 1,133 129 179 132 1,573 1,505
Stratford-upon-Avon Primary 742 139 98 80 1,059 9098
The Telford Langley School 3,884 542 361 836 5,623 4,678
The Telford Park School 2,755 412 327 567 4,061 3,433
The Telford Priory School 4,358 696 757 651 6,462 5,806
The Polesworth School 5,833 1,142 325 1,061 8,361 7,827
The Wilnecote School 2,892 566 276 621 4,355 4,187
Windmill Primary School 1,293 508 66 432 2,299 2,102
Wood End Primary School 542 52 - 64 108 766 728
The Woodlands Community 946 92 104 174 1,316. 1,273
Primary School

Woodloes Primary School 1,444 197 134 158 1,933 1,865
CAT Teaching School 111 282 7 104 504 260
Community Academies Trust 6§23 531 7 356 1,417 1,560

(Central Services)
Pension FRS102 adjustment ] 2,230 2,230 2,080
33,031 6364 3389 8,769 51,553 46,481

Total expenditure, excluding depreciation, in 2021 is £51,553,000 (2020:£46,481,000) of which
£33,031,000 is for teaching and educational support staff costs (2020:£29,606,000), £6,364,000 for other
support staff costs (2020:£5,590,000), £3,389,000 for educational supplies (2020:£2,829,000) and
£8,769,000 for other costs (2020:£8,386,000).




Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

19. Analysis of Net Assets between Funds

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Assot Total Funds
Funds Funds Funds 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Intangible fixed assets - - 57 67
Tangible fixed assets - - 120,891 120,891
Other investments - 3,000 - 3,000
Current assets 917 6,776 504 8,197
Current liabilities - (4,552) - (4,552)
Non-current liabilities - (210) - (210)
Pension scheme liability - (34,970) - (34,970)
Total net assets at 31 August 2021 917 (29,956) 121,452 92,413
Comparative restated information in respect of the previous period is as follows:
Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total Funds
Funds Funds Funds 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Intangible fixed assets - - 75 75
Tangible fixed assets - - 104,972 104,972
Other investments - 3,750 - 3,750
Current assets 1,093 4,187 869 6,159
Current liabilities - (3,661) - (3,661)
Non-current liabilities - (274) - (274)
Pension scheme liability - (28,614) - (28,614)
Total net assets at 31 August 2020 1,093 (24,602) 105,916 82,407
20. Capital Commitments
' 2021 2020
£000 £000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 315 122

Commitments at the year end represent planned school! capital projects, funded from the balance on the

School Condition Aliocation.
21. Commitments under operating leases

Operating Leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the academy trust’s future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

2021 2020
£000 £000
88 81
121 124
209 205
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Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

22. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020
Restated
£000 £000
Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period 13,772 (2,812)
Adjusted for:
Amortisation 18 15
Depreclation (note 13) 3,095 2,761
Impairment (note 13) - 1,164
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,537) (1,732)
Capital donations from DfE (5,926) (95)
Capital donations from Local Authority (6,643) -
Interest receivable (note 5) (14) (48)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 28) 1724 1,618
Deflned benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 28) 506 462
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 322 (153)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 888 (226)
Transfer from local authority (3797) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,408 954
23. Cash flows from investing activities
2021 2020
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 14 48
Purchase of intangible fixed assets - (53)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,295) (1,869)
Capital Grants from DfE/ ESFA/ LA 1,537 1,732
Cash divested in year _ 750 750
Net cash provided by investing activities 6 608
24. Cash flows from financing activities
2021 2020
£000 £000
Repayments of borrowing (60) (14)
Cash inflows from new borrowings 6 226
Net cash provided by financing activities (54) 212
25. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
At 31 At 31
August August
2021 2020
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 4,172 3,312
Notice deposits (less than 3 months) 2,251 750
Total cash and cash equivalents 6422 40862
26. Analysis of changes in net debt
At1 Cash  Other non- At 31
September flows cash August
2020 changes 2021
: £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash 4,062 2,360 - 6,422
Loans falling due with one year (60) (3) - {63)
Loans falling due after more than one year . (274) 64 - (210) .
Total 3,728 2,421 - 6,149
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

27. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event
of it being wound up while hefshe Is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to

bea member.
28. Penslon and Similar Obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Warwickshire County Council, Staffordshire County Council or
Shropshire County Council depending on the location of the school. All are multi-employer defined-benefit

schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2020.

Contributions amounting to £731,000 (2020: £638,000) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 and
are included within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment. The TPS is an unfunded schems to which both the
member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary — these contributions are credited to the
Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS In
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance
with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 except it has been
prepared following the Government's decision to pause the operation of the cost control mechanisms at the
time when legal challenges were still pending.

The valuation report was published on § March 2018. The key results of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are: '

« employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

» total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional asssts (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million '

» the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate
is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed .nominal rate of return

including earnings growth Is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

28. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)
As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from
September 2020 onwards. DfE agreed to pay a teachers' pension employer contribution grant to cover the
additional costs during the 2019/20 and 2020/21 academic years.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £4,479,000 (2020: £4,064,000).

The TPS is a muiti-employer pension plan and there is insufficient information to account for the scheme as a
defined benefit plan so it is accounted for as a defined contribution plan.

Loca! Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £2,548,000 (2020: £2,178,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £2,040,000 (2020: £1,732,000) and employees' contributions totalled
£508,000 (2020: £446,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are:

Employer's Employee's

Warwickshire 22.8% Between 5.5% and 12.5%
Shropshire 16.7% Between 5.5% and 12.5%
Staffordshire 24.2% Between 5.5% and 12.5%

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The Shropshire Pension Fund Is in deficit and additional contributions are being made of £251,500 p.a. over
21 years increasing by 3.9% pa. The Warwickshire and Staffordshire Pension Funds are also in deficit which
is currently being recovered through higher contribution rates.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase
for pensions in

payment/ CPI Rate of increase  Discount rate for
Inflation in salaries scheme liabilities
2021 assumptions
Warwickshire Pension Fund 2.9% 3.7% 1.7%
Shropshire Pension Fund 2.8% 4.0% 1.7%
Staffordshire Pension Fund 2.9% 3.3% 1.7%
2020 assumptions
Warwickshire Pension Fund ' 2.2% 3.0% 1.7%
Shropshire Pension Fund 2.5% 3.7% 1.8%
Staffordshire Pension Fund 2.2% 2.6% 1.7%
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Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

28. Pension and Similar Obllgatio_ns (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Change in assumptions at
31 August 2021

- Approximate % increase to
defined benefit obligation

Warwickshire Pension Fund
Shropshire Pension Fund

Staffordshire Pension Fund
Approximate monetary amount
(E°000) ‘

Warwickshlre Pension Fund
Shropshire Pension Fund
Staffordshire Pension Fund

0.1% decrease
in Real Discourit

Rata

2%
3%
3%

696
548
326

0.1% Increase
in the Salary
Increase Rate

0%
0%
0%

68
70
39

0.1% increase in

the Pension

Increase Rate

2%
3%
2%

618
548
282

The current mortality assumptlons include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 assumptions
Warwickshire Pension Fund
Shropshire Pension Fund
Staffordshire Pension Fund
2020 agsumptions
Warwickshire Pension Fund
Shropshire Pension Fund
Staffordshire Pension Fund

Retiring today
Males Females
218 24.2
23.0 251
214 240
21.6 238
229 25.0
21.2 236

Retiring
Males

23.0
243
225

225
242
221

in 20 years

Females

26.1
26.7
25.7

25.4
26.6
25.0
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Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

28, Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

The trust's share of the assets and liabilities in each of the pension fund schemes was:

Warwickshire Shropshire Staffordshire
Fairvalue Fairvalue Fairvalue Fairvalue Fairvalue Fair value
at 31 at 31 at 31 at 31 at 31 at 31
August August August August August August
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Equities 8,724 6,884 5,220 3,922 4,216 3,116
Bonds 3,764 2,868 2,020 1,795 1,128 916
Property 1,725 1,491 359 343 416 366
Cash 471 229 174 139 178 183
Other . - - 2,482 1,958 - -
Total fair value ' '
of assets 15,684 11,472 10,255 8,157 5,938 4,581
Present value of scheme
liabilities - funded __(28,383) (20,923) (25,940) (22,436) (12,524) (9,465)
Deficit in the
scheme (12,699) (9,451) (15,685) (14,279) (6,586) (4,884)
The actual return on scheme assets in each fund was:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Warwickshire Pension Fund 3,008 704
Shropshire Pension Fund 1,286 88
Staffordshire Pension Fund 974 (101)
Combined LGPS Pension Funds
Amounts recognised In the statement of financial activities
2021 2020
£000 £000
Current service cost {net of employer contributions) 1,724 1,590
Past service cost - 28
Net interest cost 506 462
Total operating charge 2,230 2,080
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
At 1 September 52,824 46,749
Upon conversion 632 -
Current service cost 3,764 3,322
Interest cost 947 884
Employee contributions 508 446
Actuarial loss/ (gain) 8,571 1,720
Benefits paid (399) (325)
Past service cost - 28
At 31 August 66,847 52,824
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Community Academies Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

28. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

Changes In the fair value of the trust’s share of scheme assets:

2021 2020

£000 £000
At 1 September 24,210 21,685
Upon conversion 272 -
Interest income 441 422
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net defined 4,805 250
pension liability) :
Employer contributions 2,040 1,732
Employee contributions 508 446
Benefits paid (399) (325)
At 31 August 31,877 24,210

29. Related Party Transactions

30.

Owing to the nature of the academy trust’s operations and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn
from the local pubiic and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted In accordance with
the Academies Financial Handbook and in accordance with the trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period:

Miss H Mason, daughter of Mr S Mason, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a teacher. Miss H
Mason's appointment was made in open competition and Mr S Mason was not involved in the decision making
process regarding appointment. Miss H Mason is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no
special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Mrs S Atkins, spouse of Mr S Atkins, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a casual exam invigilator.
Mrs S Atkins’ appointment was made in open competition and Mr S Atkins was not invoived in the decision
making process regarding appointment. Mrs S Atkins is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Agency Arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2021 the trust received £23,777 (2020 £22,972) and disbursed £23,669 (2020
£19,893) from the fund. An amount of £11,444 (2020 £11,336) is carried forward to be disbursed in 2021/22
and is included in other creditors.

The academy trust previously held and distributed funds as an agent for Telford & Wrekin Primary Schools PE
Association. In the accounting period ending 31 August 2021 the trust received £nil (2020 £2,202) from
contributing schools and disbursed £nil (2020 £2,597). The balance as at 31 August 2020 of £11,129 has been
transferred to another school in the Association which now acts as fundholder.




Community Academies Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

31. Conversions to the academy trust

On 1 January 2021 Kingsway Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to the trust from Warwickshire County Council for

£nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings
with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations
— transfer from a local authority on conversion.

The following tables set out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities:

Kingsway Primary School

Unrestricted

Leasehold land & buildings
Cash - representing budget
surplus on other school funds
LGPS pension deficit

Funds
£000

7

Restricted
general
funds
£000

(360)

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
£000

4,150

Total
£000
4,150

(360)

Net assets/(liabilities)

7

(360)

4,150

3,797

32. Teaching School trading account

Direct Income

Other Government Grants
Other Income

Trading income

Total Income

Direct Costs
Direct staff costs
Other direct costs
Total direct costs

Other Costs
Support staff costs
Advertising & recruitment
Technology

Other support costs
Audit

Total other costs

Total expenditure

Surplus from all sources

Teaching School balance at 1
September

Teaching school balance at 31 August

189

84

118
99

282

=N .

2021
£000

273

(217)

226

_(e87)

(504)

(231)
231
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2020
£000

260

(194)

66)_
(260)

231

231
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Community Academies Trust ‘
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

33. Prior Year Adjustment

» w2

l € o,

There has been a change in accounting policy in the year to recognise the value of land on long leaseholds
acquired by the trust. The impact of this has been to increase the cost of long leasehold land and buildings by
£15.029m and the accumulated depreciation by £0.607m as at 1 September 2019. Overall this increases the net
book value of fixed assets by £14.422m at 1 September 2019 compared to the amount previously stated with a
corresponding increase in the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund.

The Change in accounting policy also depreclates fong leasehold land over the remaining period of the lease,
which is normally originally 125 years in the academy sector. Depreciation for the year ended 31 August 2020

" has been increased by £123k in this respect. The net book value of long leasehold land and buildings in fixed

assets has been reduced by £123k in the year ended 31 August 2020 and the restricted fixed asset fund has
incurred an additional expense related to the academy trust educational operations of £123k.

As a result of the above the net book value of fixed assets has been restated by £14.298m increase as at 31
August 2020 with a corresponding increase in the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund.
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